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LORD ABBETT ALFFILIATED FUND, LORD
ARBETT ALL VAI UF FUND, LORD ABBETT
ALPHA SERILS FUND. LORD ABBETT
AMERICA'S VALUE FUND, I.ORD ABBETT
BAT.ANCED SCRIES FUND, LORD ABBETT
DLVELOPING GROWTII FUND, LORD ARBETT :
GLOBAL EQUITY FUND, LORD ABBLTT
GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES FUND, LORD
ABBETT INTERNATIONAL CORE EQUITY
FUND. LORD ABBETT INTERNATIONAL
OPPORTUNITIES FUND, LORD ABBETY
LARGE-CAP GROWTH FUND, LORD ABBLETT
LARGE-CAP RESEARCH FUND, LORD ABBETT:
LARGE-CAP VALUL FUND, LORD ABBETT
MID-CAP VALUE FUND, LORD ABBLETT
SMATL-CAP BLEND FUND, LORD ABBEL'l
SMATLL-CAP VALUE FUND, LORD ABBET!
ROND-DEBLNTURE FUND, LORD ABBETT
CALIFORNIA FUND, LORD) ABBETT
CONNECTICUT FUND, LORD ABBETT
CONVERTIBLE FUND, LORD ABBETT CORE
FIXED INCOME FUND, LORD ABBETT
IFLORIDA FUND, LORD ABBET'I' GEORGIA
FUND, LORD ABBETT GLOBAL INCOME

FUND, LORD ABBLTT [JAWAII FUND,

LORD ABBETT HIGH YILLD FUND, LORD
ABBETT INSURED INTERMFEDIATL FUND,
LORD ABBLTT LIMITED DURATION USG &
GSE FUND, LORD ABBFETT MICIIIGAN FUND,
LORD ABRETT MINNESOTA FUND, LORD
ABBLTT MISSOURIL FUND, LORD ABBETT
NATIONAT. TAX-FRLE FUND, LORD ABBETT
NEW JERSEY FUND, LORD ABBLI'l NEW
YORK [UND. LORD ABBETT PENNSYLVANIA :
FUND, LORD ABBETT TEXAS FUND, LORD
ABBLIT TOTAL RLTURN FUND, LORD
ABBETT USG & GSE FUND. LORD ABBETT
USG & GSE MONEY MARKFET FUND, and LORD:
ABBETT WASITINGTON I'UND :
(COLLECTIVELY, TIIE “LORD ABBETT
FUNDS™),

Nominal Delendants.
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Plaintiff, by and through his counscl, alleges the following based upon the investigation
of counsel, which included a review of United States Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC™) filings, as well as other regulatory filings, reports, and advisories, press releases, media
rcports, news articles, academic literature, and academic studies. Plaintiff believes that
substantial additional evidentiary support will exist for the allegations set forth hercin after a

reasonablc opportunity for discovery.

NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. PlaintifT brings this action as a class action on behalf of investors in mutual funds
belonging to the Lord Abbett & Co. LLC (“Lord Abbett™) family of mutual funds (the “Lord
Abbett Funds”) against [.ord Abbett as the investment adviser of the Lord Abbetl Funds and the
partncrs of Lord Abbett as control persons of the Lord Abbett family of mutual funds, and
derivatively on behalf of the Lord Abbett Funds, against Lord Abbett as the investment adviser
to the Lord Abbett Funds, the pariners of Lord Abbett and the Lord Abbett Funds dircctors.

2, This complaint alleges that Lord Abbett, as the investment adviser 1o the Lord
Abbett Funds, drew upon the assels of the Lord Abbett Funds to pay brokers (o aggressively
push Lord Abbett Funds over other funds, and that Lord Abbett conccaled such payments from
investors by disguising them as brokcrage commissions. Such brokerage commissions, though
payable from fund assets, are not disclosed to investors in the Lord Abbett Funds public filings
or elsewhere.

3. ‘Thus, Lord Abbett Funds investors were induced to purchase Lord Abbett Funds
by brokers who received undisclosed payments from Lord Abbett to push Lord Abbett Funds
over other mutual funds and who therefore had an undisclosed conflict of interest. Then, once

invested in one or more of the Lord Abbett Funds, Lord Abbett Funds investors were charged
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and paid undisclosed fees thal were improperly used to pay brokers to aggressively push Lord
Abbett Funds to yct other brokerage clients.

4, Lord Abbett was motivated to make these sceret payments to finance the improper
marketing of Lord Abbetl Funds because their fees were calculated as a percentage of the funds’
net asscts under management and, therefore, tended to increase as the number of T.ord Abbett
Funds investors grew. Lord Abbett attempted to justify this conduct on the ground that by
increasing (he Lord Abbett Funds assels it was creating economies of scalc that inured to the
hencfit of investors. However, in truth and in fact, Lord Abbett Funds investors received none of
the bencfits of these purporied economies of scale becausc Lord Abbett continued to skim from
the Lord Abbett l'unds to finance its ongoing marketing campaign. The Tord Abbett Funds
directors, who purported to be Lord Abbett investor watchdogs, knowingly or recklessly
permitted this conduct o occur.

5. By engaging in this conduet, Lord Abbett and the defendant entitics that control 1t
breached their statutorily-defined fiduciary duties under Scctions 36(a) and (b) of the Investment
Company Act of 1940 (the “Investment Company Act”) and Scction 206 of the Investment
Advisers Act of 1940 (the “Investment Adviscrs Act”™), breached their common law fiduciary
duties, and knowingly aided and abetted the brokers in breaches of fiduciary duties to their
clicats. Lord Abbett also violated Section 34(b) of the Investment Company Act because, to
further its improper campaign, it made unirue statcments of material fact in fund registration
statcments, and omilted to disclose material facts with respect to the procedure for determimng
the amount of fees payable to Lord Abbett and with respect to the improper uscs of the fees.
Additionally, the Lord Abbeit Funds directors breached their common law fiduciary duties to the
Lord Abbett Funds investors by knowingly or recklessly allowing the improper conduct alleged

herein to occur and harm Lord Abbett Funds investors.
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6. On January 28, 2004, the Los Angeles Times published an article about a Senate
committee hearing on mutual fund abuses which stated, in pertinent part, as follows:

“The mutual fund industry is indeed the world’s largest skimming operation,” said
Sen. Peter Fitzgerald (R-111.), chairman of the panel, comparing the scandal-
plagued industry to “a $7-trillion trough™ exploited by fund managers, brokers
and other insiders.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

7. The claims asserted hercin arise under and pursuant to Sections 34(b), 36(b} and
48(a) of the Investment Company Act of 1940, 15 U.5.C. §§80a-33(b), 80a-35(a) and (b} and
80a-47(a), Sections 206 and 215 of the Investment Advisers Act, 15 U.S.C. §§80b-6 and 80b-15,
and common law,

8. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matler of this action pursuant to
Section 44 of the Investment Company Act, 15 U.S.C. §80a-43; Section 214 of the Investment
Advisers Act, 15 U.S.C. §80b-14; and 28 U.8.C. § 1391(b).

9, Many of the acts charged herein, including the preparation and dissemination of
materially false and misleading information, occurred in substantial part in this District.
Defendants conducted other substantial business within this District and many Class members
reside within this District. Defendant Lord Abbett was, at all relevant times, and still is,
headquartered in this Disinict.

10. In connection with the acts alleged in this complaint, defendants, directly or
indirectly, uscd the means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce, including, but not
limited to, the mails, intcrstate telephone communications, and the facilities of the national
securilies markoets.

PARTIES
11.  Plaintiff Joseph C. White (*'Plaintiff”) purchased and continues to own shares or
units of the Lord Abbett Mid-Cap Value Fund, Lord Abbett Affiliated Fund, Lord Abbett All

3
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Value Fund and Lord Abbett Growth Opportunitics Fund and has been damaged by the conduct
alleged herein.

12.  Decfendant Lord Abbett is a Delaware limited hability company cngaged in the
business of money management. Lord Abbelt manages approximatcly 45 mutual fund portfolios,
and as of Scptember 30, 2003, managed over $62.1 billion in assels. Lord Abbett has its
principal place of business at 90 Hudson Strect, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302-3973. Lord
Abbett is registered as an investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act and had ultimate
responsibility for overseeing the day-to-day management of the Lord Abbett Funds, Investment
advisory fees payable to Lord Abbett are calculated as a percentage of fund assets under
management. During fiscal year 2002, Lord Abbett Mid-Cap Value Fund investors paid Lord
Abbett management, marketing and distribution fces at annual rates ranging from 1.25 pereent to
1.86 percent of fund assets (depending on share class). Lord Abbett Mid-Cap Value Fund, Inc.,
a Maryland corporation with its principal place ol busincss located at 90 Hudson Strect, Jersey
City, New Jersey 07302-3973, is the registrant of the Lord Abbett Mid-Cap Value Fund.

13.  During the relevant time period, the following defendants, scrved as partners of
Lord Abbett:

Tracie E. Ahemn, Joan A. Binstock, Daniel E. Carper, Robert 5. Dow, Howard E.
Hansen, Paul A. Hilstad, Lawrence H. Kaplan, Robert G. Morris, A, Edward
Oberhans, 111, Edward K. von der Linde, Michael Brooks, Zane E. Brown, Patrick
Browne, John J. DiChiaro, Sholom Dinsky, Lesley-Tane Dixon, Kevin P,
Ferguson, Robert P. Fetch, Daria L. Foster, Daniel H. Frascarelli, Robert I,
Gerber, Michacl 8. Goldstein, Michael A. Grant, Charles Hofer, W. Thomas
Hudson, Jr., Cinda Hughes, Ellen G. Itskovilz, Maren Lindstrom, Robert A. Lee,
Gregory M. Macosko, Thomas Malone, Chatles Massare, Jr., Stephen J.
MeGrudet, Paul McNamara, Robert J. Noelke, R. Mark Pennington, Walter Prahi,
Michael Rosc, Eli M. Salzmann, Douglas B. Sieg, Richard Sicling, Michael T.

Smith, Richard Smola, Diane Tomejal, Chnstopher J. Towle and Marion Zapolin.

These individuals are referred to hereinafter as the “Partner Defendants.” The business address

of each of the Partner Defendants i1s 90 Hudson Strect, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302-3973,
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14.  Defendants Robert S. Dow (“Dow™), E. Thayer Bigclow (“Bigclow™), William
H.T. Bush (“Bush™), Robert B, Calhoun, Jr. (“Calhgun™), Stewart S. Dixon (“Dixon™), Franklin
W. Hobbs (“Hobbs™), C. Alan MacDonald (“MacDonald™), Thomas J. Nell (“Neff”) and James
E. Orr [T {*Or™) were directors or trusiees of the Lord Abbelt Funds, including the Lord Abbett
Mid-Cap Value Fund, during the Class Period. Additionally:

(a) Dow is the Managing Partner and Chiel Investment Officer of Lord
Abbett and is an “interested person” as defined in the Investment Company Act. He is also an
officer, director, or trustee of each of the Lord Abbett Funds, which consist of approximately 45
portfolios or scrics.
(b} Tn 2002, Bigelow, Bush, Calhoun, Dixon, Hobbs, MacDonald, Nelf and

Qrr each served on the Lord Abbetl board ol directors charged with supervising all of the Lord
Abbett Funds. Bigelow, Bush, Calhoun, Dixon, Hobbs, MacDonald, Neff and Orr received
compensation of $85,000, $85,200, $86,400, $84,400, $85,000, $85,000, $84,000 and $70,500,
respectively, for their service as a Lord Abbett Funds director.

15.  Defendants John Does 1-100 were Lord Abbett Funds directors during the Class
Period and any other wrongdoers later discovered whose identities have yel to be ascertained and
which will be determined during the coursc of Plaintiff’s counsel’s ongoing investigation.

16.  The Lord Abbeul directors identified above and John Does 1-100 are refcrred to
collectively hercin as the “Director Defendants.”

17.  Nominal defendants the Lord Abbett Funds, as identified in the caption of this
complaint and on the list annexed herelo as Exlubit A, arc open-ended management companies
consisting of the capital invested by mutual fund shareholders, and managed by the Director

Defendants. The Lord Abbett Funds are named as nominal defendants to the cxtent that they
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may be deemed necessary and indispensable partics pursuant to Rule 19 of the Federal Rulcs of
Civil Procedure and to the extent necessary to cnsure the availability of adequate remedies.

PLAINTIFE’S CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

18.  Plaintiff brings certain of these claims as a class action pursuant to Federal Rule
of Civil Procedure 23(a) and (b)(3) on behalf of a Class, consisting of all persons or entilies who
purchased, redeemed or held shares or like interests in any ol the Lord Abbett Funds belween
February 6, 1999 and November 17, 2003, inclusive, and who were damaged thereby (the
“(Class™). Excluded from the Class arc defendants, members of (heir immediate families and
their legal represcntatives, heirs, successors or assigns and any entity in which defendants have
or had a controlling intcrest.

19.  The members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all members is
impracticable. While the exact number of Class members is unknown to Plaintiff at this time
and can only be ascertained through appropriate discovery, Plaintiff belicves that there 1s many
thousands of members in the proposed Class. Record owners and other members of the Class
may be identified {rom records maintained by Lord Abbett and the Tord Abbett Funds and may
be notified of the pendency of this action by mail, using the form of notice similar to that
customarily used in securities class actions.

20.  Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the members of the Class as all
members of the Class are similarly affected by defendants’ wrongful conduct in violation of
federal law that is complained of herein.

21. Plaintiff will fairly and adcquately protect the interests of the members of the

(lass and has retained counsel competent and experienced i class and sccurities litigation,
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22, Common questions of law and fact exist as to all members of the Class and
predominate over any questions solely affecting individual members of the Class. Among the
questions of law and fact common to the Class are:

(a) whether the Investment Company Act was violated by defendants’ acts as
alleged herein;

(b) whether the Investment Advisers Act was violated by defendants’ acts as
alleged herein;

(c) whether Lord Abbett breached its common law fiduciary duties and/or
knowingly aided and abetted common law breaches of fiduciary duties;

(d) whether statements made by defendants o the investing public during the
Class Period misrepresented or omilled to disclose material facts about the business, operations
and financial statemenis of the Lord Abbett Funds; and

(e) to what extent the members of the Class have sustained damages and the
proper measure of damages,

23. A class aclion is supcrior to all other available methods for the fair and efficient
adjudication ol this controversy since joinder of all members is impracticablc. Furthermore, as
the damages suffered by individual Class members may be relatively small, the expense and
burden of individual litigation make it virtually impossible for members of the Class to
individually redress the wrongs done to them. There will be no difficulty in the management of

this action as a class action.
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SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS

The Dircctor Defendants Breached Their
Fiduciary Duties To Lord Abbett Funds Investors

24.  Lord Abbett Funds public filings statc that the board of directors for cach Lord
Abbett Fund is responsible for the management and supetvision of cach respective fund. Tn this
regard, the most recent Statement of Additional Tnformation made available to Lord Abbett
Funds investors upon request for the funds offered by T.ord Abbett Mid-Cap Value Fund, Inc.,
which includes the various classes of the Lord Abbett Mid-Cap Value Fund (the “Statement of
Additional Information™) is typical. It states, with respect to the duties of board members, as
follows:

'The Board of Dircctors is responsible for the management of the business and
affairs of the Fund in accordance with the laws of the State of Maryland, The
Board appoints officers who arc responsible for the day-to-day operations of the
Fund and who execute policies authorized by the Board. As discussed fully
below, the Board also approves an investment adviser to the Fund and continues
to monitor the cost and quality of the services provided by the investment adviser,
and annually considcrs whether to renew the contract with the adwviser.

25.  Another section of the Statement ol Additional Infonmation appcars under the
heading APPROVAL OF ADVISORY CONTRACT and sets [orth in greater detail the
purported process by which the investment manager is selected:

At a meeting on December 12, 2002, the Board of Directors of the Fund,
including all ils Directors who are nol interested persons of the Fund (the
“Board"), considered whether to approve the continuation of the existing
management agreement between the Fund and Lord Abbett. Tn addition to the
materials the Board had reviewed throughout the course of the year, the Board
reccived materials relating to the management agrecment before the meeting and
had the opportunily to ask questions and request farther information in connection
with their consideration,

26,  The Investment Company Institute (“ICT™), of which Lord Abbett is a member,
recently described the duties of mutual fund boards as follows:

Morc than 77 million Americans have chosen mutual funds to gain convenicnt
access to a professionally managed and diversified portfolio of investments.

8
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Investors reecive many other benefits by investing in mutual funds, including
strong legal protections and full disclosure. In addition, shareholders gain an
extra layer of protection becausc cach mutual fund has a board of directors
looking out for shareholders’ inlerests.

Unlike the directors of other corporations, mutual fund directors are
responsible for protecting consumers, in this case, the funds’ investors. The
unigue “watchdog” role, which does not exist in any other type of company in
America, provides investors with the confidence of knowing the directors
oversee the advisers who manage and service their investments.

In particular, under the Investment Company Act of 1940, the board of
directors of ¢ mutual fund is charged with looking after how the fund operates
and overseeing matters where the interests of the fund and its shareholders
differ from the interests of its investment adviser or management conipany.
[Emphasis added.}'

27.  Intruth and in fact, the Lord Abbett Funds boards of direciors were captive to and
controlled by Lord Abbett who prevented Lord Abbett Fund board members from fulfilling their
statutory and fiduciary dutics to manage and supervise the Lord Abbett Funds, approve all
significant agreements and otherwisc take reasonable steps to prevent Lord Abbett from
skimming Lord Abbett assets.

28,  The Lord Abbeit dircctors oversee dozens of Lord Abbett funds such that 1t 1s
impracticable for them to properly perform their supervisory and monitoring [unctions. Lor
example, all direclors of the Lord Abbett Funds oversaw at fcast 45 other portfolios or series in
the Lord Abbelt fund compicx. Therefore, the Lord Abbett Funds trustees functioned io falscly
legitimize and validate Lord Abbett’s improper conduct.

29, In exchange for creating and managing the Lord Abbett Funds, including the Lord

Abbett Mid-Cap Value Fund, Lord Abbett Affiliated Fund, Lord Abbett All Value Fund and

: The ICI describes itself as the national association of the UL, investment company industry. Founded in

1944, its membership includes approximately 8,601 mutual funds, 604 closed-cnd funds, 110 exchange-traded
funds, and six sponsors of unit investment trusts. Its mutual fund members represent 86.6 million individual
shareholders and manage approximately $7.2 trillion in investor asscts. The quotation above is exgerpted from a
paper entitled a paper titled Understanding the Role of Mutual Fund Directors available on the TCT's websile atl
http://www.ici.org/issues/dit/bro_mf directors,pdf.




Case 2:04-cv-00559-WJUM-RJH  Document 1 Filed 02/09/2004 Page 12 of 3401

Lord Abbett Growth Opportunities Fund, Lord Abbctt charges the fund a fee comprised of a
percentage of assets under management. Hence, the more moncy invested in the funds, the
greater the [ees paid to Lord Abbett. In theory, the fees charged to fund investors are negotiated
at arm’s-length between the fund board and the invesiment management company and must be
approved by the independent members of the board. However, as a result of the board’s
dependence on Lord Abbett, and their failure to properly manage the investment adviser, a
tremendous amount of fund assets were transferred through fees payable from Lord Abbett
Funds assets 1o Lord Abbett for services that are of no benefit to fund mvestors.

30.  As aresult of these practices, the mulual fund industry was enormously profitable
for Lord Abbett. In this regard, a Forbes article, published on September 15, 2003, stated as
follows:

The average net profit margin at publicly held mutual fund firms was 18.8% last
year, blowing away the 14.9% margin for the financial industry overall . . .. [flor
{he most part, customers do not enjoy the benefits of the economies of scale
created by having larger funds, Indeed, once a fund reaches a certain critical
mass, the directors know that there is no discernible benefit from having the
fund become bigger by drawing in more investors; in fact, they know the
opposite to be true - once a fund becomes too large it loses the ability to trade in
and out of positions without hurting its investors. . . ]

The [mutual fund| business grew 71-fold (20 fold in real terms) in the two
decades through 1999, yet costs as a percentage of assets somehow managed to
go up 29%. ... Fund vendors have a way of stacking their boards with rubber
stamps. As famed investor Warrcn Buffett opines in Berkshire Flathaway’s 2002
annual report: “‘Tens of thousands of independent directors, over more than six
decades, have failed miserably.” A genuinely independent board would
occasionally firc an incompetent or overcharging fund advisor. That happens just
about never.

(Emphasis added.)

31.  Plaintiff and other members of the class never knoew, nor could they have known,

from reading the fund prospectuses or otherwise, of the extent to which Lord Abbett was using

10
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so-called 12b-1 fees, direcled brokerage (as defined below) and commissions to improperly
siphon assets from the funds.

Lord Abbett Used
Rule 12b-1 Marketing Fees For Improper Purposes

32.  Sechion 12(b) of the Investment Company Act prohibits mutual funds from
dircetly or indirectly distributing or marketing their own shares unless certain enumcrated
conditions set forth in Rule 12b-1, promulgated by the SEC pursuant to the Investment Company
Act, are met. The Rule 12b-1 conditions, among others, are that payments for marketing must be
made pursuant to a wrillen plan “describing all material aspects of the proposed (inancing of
distribution;” all agrcements with any person relating to implementation of the plan must be in
writing; the plan and any rclated agreements must be approved by a votc of the majority of the
board of directors; and the board of directors must review, at least quarterly, “a written report of
the amounts so expended and the purposes for which such expenditurcs were made.”
Additionally, the directors “have a duty to request and evaluate, and any person who is a party to
any agreemenl with such company relating 10 such plan shall have a duty to furnish, such
information as may rcasonably be necessary to an informed determination of whether the plan
should be implemented or continued.” The directors may continue the plan “only if the board of
directors who vole {o approve such implementation or continuation conclude, in the exercise of
rcasonable business judgment, and in light of their fiduciary duties under state law and section
36(a) and (b) [15 U.S.C. 80a-35(a) and (b}] of the [Investment Company] Act that there is a
reasonable likelihood that the plan will benefit the company and its sharcholders,” (Emphasis
added).

33 The exceplions to the Scction 12(b) prohibition on mutual fund marketing and

distribution were enacted in 1980 under the theory that the marketing of mutual funds generally

11
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should be encouraged because increased investment in mutual funds would presumably result in
economies of scale, the benefits of which would be shified from fund managers to investors.
During the Class Period, the Direclor Defendants authorized, and Lord Abbett collected, millions
of dollars in purported Rule 12b-1 marketing and distribution fees.

34,  However, the purported Rule 12b-1 fees charged to Lord Abbett Funds investlors
were highly improper because the conditions of Rule 12b-1 were not met. There was no
“reasonable likelihood” that the plan would benefit the company and its shareholders. On the
contrary, as the funds were marketed and the number of fund investors increased, the cconomics
of scale therehy created, if any, were not passed on to Lord Abbett Funds investors. If anything,
the Lord Abbett Funds marketing eflorts were creating diminished marginal returns under
circumstances where increased fund size correlated with reduced liquidity and fund performance.
Il the Director Defendants reviewed written reports of the amounts expended pursuant to the
Lord Abbett Funds Rule 12b-1 Plan, and the information pertaining to agreements cntered into
pursuant to the Rule 12b-1 Plan, on a quarterly basis as required -- - which seems highly unlikely
undcr the circumstances set forth herein . the Director Defendants either knowingly or
recklessly failed to ferminate the plans and the payments made pursuant to the Rule 12b-1 Plan,
cven though such payments not only harmed existing Lord Abbett Funds sharcholders, but also
werc improperly used to induce brokers to breach their duties of loyalty to their prospective Lord
Abbetl Funds investors.

a5, Moreover, at least 12 classes of Lord Abbett funds are closed o new investors
(“the Closed Funds™) and, consequently, the so-called 12b-1 fces could not possibly have been
used to markel and distribute them. Nevertheless, Lord Abbett received Rule 12b-1 fees charged

to the Closed Funds. The Closed Funds that charged such Rule 12b-1 fees are annexed hereto as

Exhibit B.
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36.  As set forth below, in violation o[ Rule 12b-1 and Section 28(e) of the Securities
Exchange Act, defendants made additional undisclosed paymenis lo brokers, in the form of
excess commissions, that were not disclosed or authorized by the Lord Abbett Funds Rule 12b-1
plan,

Lord Abbett Charged Its Overhead To Lord Abbett Funds Investors And Sccretly Paid
Excessive Commissions To Brokers To Steer Clients To Lord Abbett Funds

37. Tnvestment adviscrs routinely pay brokers commissions on the purchase and sale
of fund securities, and such commissions may, under certain circumstances, properly be used to
purchase certain other services from brokcrs as well. Specifically, the Section 28(c) “safe
harbor” provision of the Securities Exchange Act carves out an exception to the rule that requircs
investment management companics to obtain the best possible execution price for their trades.
Section 28(e) provides that fund managers shall not be deemed 1o have breached their fiduciary
duties “solely by reason of [their] having caused the account to pay a . . . broker . . . in excess of
the amount of commission another . . . broker . . . would have charged for eflecting the
transaction, if such person determined in good faith that the amount of the commission is
reasonable in relation to the value of the brokerage and rescarch services provided,” 15 11.5.C.
§28(e) (emphasis added). In other words, funds are allowed to include in “commmssions™
payment for not only purchase and sales execution, but also for specified services, which the
SEC has defined to include, “any scrvice that provides lawful and appropriate assistance (o the
money manager in {he performance of his investment decision-making responsibihities.” The
commission amounts charped by brokerages 1o mvestment adviscrs in excess of the purchase and
sale charges are known within the industry as Soft Dollars.

38. Lord Abbett went lar beyond what is permitted by the Section 28(e) safe harbor.

Lord Abbett used Soft Dollars to pay overhead costs (for items such as trading cquipment and
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compuler sofiware packages) thus charging Lord Abbett Funds investors for costs not covered by
the Section 28(e) safe harbor and that, consistent with the investment adviscrs’ fiduciary duties,
should properly have been borne by Lord Abbett. Tord Abbeil also paid cxcessive commissions
to broker dealers on top of any rcal Soft Dollars to steer its clients to Lord Abbett I'unds and
directed brokerage business to firms that favored Lord Abbett Funds. Such payments and
directed-brokerage payments were used to fund sales contests and other undisclosed financial
incentives (o push Lord Abbctt Funds. These incentives created an undisclosed conflict of
interest and caused brokers to steer clients to Lord Abbeil Funds regardless of the funds’
investment quality relalive 1o other investment alternatives and to thercby breach their duties of
loyalty. By paying the excessive brokerage commissions, Lord Abbett additionally violated
Section 12 of (he Investment Company Aci, because such payments were not made pursuant to a
valid Rule 12b-1 plan.

39.  The excessive commissions did not fund any services that benefited the Lord
Abbctt Funds® shareholders. This practice materially harmed Plaintiff and other members of the
class from whom the Soft Dollars were taken.

THE TRUTH BEGINS TO EMERGE

40, On December 8, 2003, Barron s revealed a revenue-sharing scheme between the
broker Edward D. Jones & Co. (“Edward Joncs™) and Lord Abbett & Co.:

Says John Sloop, pariner in charge of mutual-fund sales for
Edward Jones of St. Louis, “With Lord Abbett, there are no
surprises. The funds have low turmover rates, managers who stay
in place, and funds that do well but never wind up at the top of the
performance charts.” He adds, “Our retail customers tend o hold
onto funds for an average of 12 years, roughly four times the
industry average. We need funds that parallel our own buy-and-
hold stratcgy.”

(Lord Abbett and Edward Jones also have a revenue-sharing
agreement in which Lord Abbeti, in essence, pays for shelf space
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on the investment company's list of preferred funds. Such
agreements now are being scrutinized by critics of the industry,
who say they can create conflicts of interest and don't benefit
investors. Both Dow and Edward Jones heariily defend these
payments as standard industry practice. Dow says funds pay for
shelf space lo compensate the brokers for the infrastructure they
provide, and to level the playing [icld with in-house products.)

{Emphasis added; parcnthescs in original).

41.  On January 9, 2004, the Wall Street Journal further exposcd the relationship
between Edward Jones and seven mutual fund companies, including Lord Abbett, where the
companies paid Edward Jones substantial amounts to favor thosc companies when pitching (unds
to cuslomers. In an article, the Wall Street Journal detailed Edward Jones” wrongdoing based on
an invesligation that included interviews with 18 former and current Edward Jones brokers.

42,  According to the article, the pressure to sell the preferred funds made it
financially foolhardy for Edward Jones brokers to scll non-preferred funds. Quoting brokers
whe had sold only the preferred funds for years, the article reported as follows:

Individual brokers have a strong financial incentive to pitch
favored funds. The revenue-shanng payments arc credited as
income {o the profit-and-loss statemenis of brokerage branches.
Those stalements arc a significant factor in determining the size of
brokers’ bonuses, gencrally awarded three times a year, according
to former brokers. The bonuses can add up to $80,000 or $90,000
for a good producer, and often average about a third of total
compensalion.

“I sold no outside funds,” says former broker Eddie Hatch, who
worked at Joncs in North Carolina for 13 years, until he left in
2000 to work for another brokerage firm. “You took a reduced
payout” if you sold funds not on the preferred list, he adds.

Jones floods its brokers with hterature rom its preferred funds,
former brokers say. “T didn't take the blinders off for nine years,”
says Scott Maxwell of Cary, N.C., a broker who left Jones for
another firm in March of last ycar. He switched jobs, he says,
largely because he was uncomfortable with the limited fund
selection. Mr. Maxwell says he wanted to be [recr to offer clients
funds with better investment performance and lower fees.
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Jeff Davis says he was “young and wel behind the ears” when he
was hired at Jones in 1993 after a stint as a White House intern.
Even before he fully understood the financial incentives, he says
he sold the seven funds almost exclusively. “I was afraid not to,”
he adds. Mr. Davis, who left Jones in 2001 and started his own
business, also says he was uncomfortable with the incentives and
wanted more leoway to sell other funds.

(Emphasis addcd).

43, The revenue-sharing arrangements are harmful to investors, who, consistent with
Edward Jones’ representations, believe they arc rccciving objective, independent advice. In this
regard, the Wall Street Journal arlicle quotes a disappointed Edward Jones client who invested in
Putnam mutual funds as follows:

Like many who bought poorly performing Putnam mutual funds n
recent years, Nancy Wessels lost big, One ol her investments,
Putnam Vista fund, dropped 40% from when she bought it in April
2000, near the stock-market peak, until she sold 1t in May 2002,
That performance was worse than 80% of similar stock funds.

Whal the 80-year-old widow's broker, Edward D. Jones & Co.,
never told her was that it had a strong incentive io sell Putnam
funds instead of rivals that performed better. Jones receives hefty
payments -- one estimate tops $100 million a year -- from Putnam
and six other fund companics in exchange for favoring those
companies' funds al Jones's 8,131 U.5. sales offices, the largest
brokerage network in the nation.

When training its brokers in fund sales, Jones gives them
information almost exclusively about the seven “preferred” fund
companies, according to former Jones brokers. Bonuses [or
brokers depend in part on sclling the preferred funds, and Jones
generally discourages contact between brokers and sales
representatives from rival funds. But while revenue sharing and
related incentives are familiar to industry insiders, Jones
typically doesn't tell customers about any of these arrangements.

The situation “gives you the feeling of being violated,” says Mrs.
Wessels's son, DuWayne, a Waterloo, Towa, real-estate broker.
He says he found out about the fund-company payments to Jones
from his mother's new broker when the son moved her $300,000
account {o another firm in 2002,
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“The deception is that the broker seems to give objective advice,”
says Tamar Frankel, a law professor at Boston University who
specializes in mutual-fund regulation. “In fact, he is paid more
for pushing only certain funds.”

{Emphasis added).

44, On January 14, 2003, the Wall Street Journal published an article under the
headline, “SEC Readies Cases On Mutual Funds’ Deals With Brokers,” citing “a person familiar
with the investigation,” which slated that the SEC is “close to filing its first charges againsl
mutual fund companies related o arrangements that direct trading commissions to brokerage
firms that favor those fund companies’ products.” The article stated in pertinent part as follows:

The SEC has been probing the business arrangements between fund companies
and brokerage firms since last spring. Tt held a ncws conference yesterday lo
announcc it has found widespread evidence that brokerage firms steered
investors to certain mutual funds because of pavinents they received from fund
companies or their investment advisers as part of sales agreements.

Officials said the agency has opened invesligations into cight brokerage firms and
a dozen mutual funds that engaged in a longstanding practice known as “revenue
sharing.” Agency officials said they cxpect that number to grow as its probe
cxpands. They declined to name either the funds or the brokerage firms.

The SEC said payments varicd between 0.03% and 0.04% of sales and up to
(1.25% of assets that remained invested in the fund, [...]

People familiar with the investigation say regulators are looking into examples
of conflict of interest when fund companies use shareholder nmoney to cover
costs of sales agreements instead of paying the sales costs themselves out of the
Jfirm’s own packets. The boards of funds, too, could be subject to scrutiny for
allowing sharcholders’ commission dollars to be used for these sales
agreements. In other cases, the SEC is probing whether funds violated policies
that would require costs associated with marketing a fund to be included in a
Sund’s so-called 12b-1 plan.

(Emphasis added).
45, Additionally, on information and belicf, the Lord Abbett Funds have a practice of

charging lower management fees to institutional clients than they charge to ordinary mutual fund
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investors through their mutual fund holdings. This discriminatory treatment cannot be justified
by any additional scrvices to the ordinary invesior and is a further breach of fiduciary duties.

The Prospectuses Were Materially False And Misleading

46. Plaintiff and other members ol the Class werc cntitled to, and did receive, one of
the prospectuscs (the “‘Prospectuses’™), pursuani 1o which the Lord Abbett Funds shares were
offered, each of which contained substantially the same materially falsc and misleading
statements and omigsions regarding 12b-1 fees, commissions and Soft Dollars.

47, The Stalement ol Additional Information, referred to in certain of the Lord Abbett
Funds prospcctuses and available (o the investor upon request, stated as follows with respect to
excessive commissions:

ADDITIONAL CONCESSIONS TO AUTHORIZED INSTITUTIONS. Lord
Abbett Distributor may, for specified periods, allow dealers to retain the full sales
charge for sales ol sharcs or may pay an additional concession to a dealer who
sells a minimum dollar amount of our shares and/or shares of other Lord Abbett-
sponsored funds. In some instances, such additional concessions will be offered

only to certain dealers expected to sell significant amounts of shares. Additional
payments may be paid from Lord Abbett Distributor’s own resources or from

distribution fees received from the Fund and may be made in the form of cash

or, if permitted, non-cash payments. The non-cash payments may include
business seminars at Lord Abbett’s headquarters or other locations, including
meals and entertainment, or merchandise. The cash payments may include
payment of various business expenses of the dealer.

48, The Prospectuses failed (o disclosc and misrepresented, inter alia, the following
material and damaging adverse facts which damaged Plaintiff and other members of the Class:
(a) that Lord Abbett authorized the payment from fund assels of excessive
commissions to broker dealers in exchange for preferential marketing services and that such
payments werc in breach of their fiduciary duties, in violation of Section 12b of the Tnvestment

Company Act, and unprotected by any “safe harbor™;
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(b} that Lord Abbett directed brokcrage payments to firms that favored Lord
Abbett Funds, which was a form of markcting that was not disclosed in or authorized by the Lord
Abbett Funds Rule 12b-1 Plan;

(c) that the Lord Abbetl Funds Rule i2b-1 Plan was not in compliance with
Rule 12b-1, and thai payments madc pursuant to the plan were in violation of Scction 12 of the
Investment Company Act because, among other reasons, the plan was not properly evaluated by
the Director Defendants and there was not a reasonable likelihood that the plan would benefit the
company and its sharehelders;

(d) that by paying brokers to aggressively stecr their clients to Lord Abbett
I‘unds, Lord Abbetl was knowingly aiding and abetting a breach of fiduciary duties, and profiting
from the brokers’ improper conduct;

(e) that any cconomies of scale achieved by marketing of the Lord Abbell
Funds to ncw investors were nol passed on to Lord Abbett Funds investors;

() that defendants improperly used, under the guise of Soft Dollars, excessive
commissions, paid from Lord Abbetl Funds assets, to pay for overhead expenses the cost of
which should have been borne by Lord Abbett and not Lord Abbett Funds investors; and

(g)  that the Dircctor Defendants had abdicated their duties under the
Investment Company Act and their common law fiduciary duties, that they failed to momtor and
supervise Lord Abbeit and that, as a consequence, Lord Abbett was able to systematically skim

millions of dollars from the Lord Abbett Funds.

19




Case 2:04-cv-00559-WJUM-RJH  Document 1 Filed 02/09/2004 Page 22 of 3401

COUNT]

Against Lord Abbett
For Violations Of Section 34(b) Of The Investment
Company Act Op Behalf Of The Class

49.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges cach and every allegation contained above as if

fully set forth herein.

50.  This Count is asserted against Lord Abbett in its vole as investment adviser to the
Lord Abbell Funds,
51.  Lord Abbett madc untrue statements of material fact in registration statcments and

reports filed and disseminated pursuant to the Investment Company Act and omitted to slate facts
necessary o prevent the statements made therein, in light of the circumstances under which they
were made, from being materially false and mislcading. Lord Abbett [ailed to disclose the
lollowing:

(a) that Lord Abbett authorized the payment from fund assets of excessive
commissions o broker dealers in exchange for preferential markcting services and that such
payments were in breach of its fiduciary duties, in violation of Section 12b of the Investment
Company Act, and unprotccted by any “safe harbor™,

(b) that Lord Abbett directed brokerage payments to firms that favored Lord
Abbett Funds, which was a form of marketing that was not disclosed in or authorized by the Lord
Abbett Funds Rule 12b-1 Plan and is illegal per se;

{c) that the Lord Abbett Funds Rule 12b-1 Plan was nol in compliance with
Rule 12b-1, and that payments madc pursuant to the plan werc in violation of Section 12 of the
Investment Company Act because, among other reasons, the plan was not properly cvaluated by
the Director Defendants and there was not a reasonable likelihood that the plan would benefit the

company and its shareholders;
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(d) that by paying brokers to aggressively steer their clients to Lord Abbett
Funds, Lord Abbctt was knowingly aiding and abelting a breach of fiduciary dutics, and profiting
from the brokers’ improper conduct;

(&) that any cconomies of scale achieved by marketing of the Lord Abbett
Funds to new investors were not passed on to Lord Abbett Funds investors;

() that defendants improperly used, under the guise of Soft Dollars, excessive
commissions, paid from Lord Abbett Funds assets, to pay for overhead cxpenses the cost of
which should have been borne by Lord Abbett and not Lord Abbett Funds investors; and

(g) that the Dircctor Defendants had abdicated their dutics under the
Tnvestment Company Act and their common law fiduciary duties, that the Dircctor Defendants
failed to monitor and supcrvise Lord Abbelt and that, as a consequence, Lord Abbett was able to
systematically skim millions and millions of dollars from the Lord Abbett Funds.

52. By reason of the conduct described above, Lord Abbett violated Section 34(b) of
ihe Tnvestment Company Act,

53, Asadirect, proximale and foreseeable result of Lord Abbett’s violation of Section
34(b) of the Investment Company Act, Lord Abbett Funds investors have incurred damagcs.

54, Lord Abbett, dircetly and indirectly, by the use, mcans or instrumenialities of
interstate commerce and/or of the mails, engaged and participated in a continuous coursc of
conduct to conceal such advcrse material information.

COUNT 11
Against Lord Abbett Pursuant

To Section 36(b) Of The Investment Company Act
Derivativelv On Behalf Of The Lord Abbett Funds

55, Plaintiff rcpeats and realleges each and every allegation contained above and

otherwise incorporates the allcgations contained above.
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56.  This Count is brought by Plaintiff on behalf of the Lord Abbett Funds against
Lord Abbett for breach of its [iduciary dutics as defined by Section 36(b) of the Investment
Company Act.

57.  Lord Abbett has a fiduciary duty to the Lord Abbeit Funds and to the Lord Abbett
Funds investors with respect to the receipt of compensation for services and of payments of a
material nature made by and to Lord Abbett.

38. Lord Abbett violaled Section 36(b) by improperly, and without adequate
disclosure, charging investors in the Lord Abbett Funds purported Rule 12b-1 marketing fees,
and by drawing on Lord Abbett Funds assets 1o pay excessive and illegal commissions under the
guise of Sofl Dollars.

59. By reason of the conduet described above, Lord Abbett vielated Section 36(b) of
the Tnvestment Company Act.

60, As a dircet, proximate and foreseeablc result of Lord Abbet(’s breach of the
fiduciary duty of loyalty in its role as investment adviser to the Lord Abbett Funds investors,
Lord Abbett Funds investors have incurred millions and millions of dollars in damagces.

6l. Plaintiff, in this Count, sccks to recover the Rule 12b-1 fees, Soft Dollars,
excessive commissions and the management fees charged the Lord Abbett Funds by Lord
Abbett.

COUNTIII
Against The Partner Defendants As Control Persons Of Lord Abbett For

Violation Of Section 48(a) Of The Investment Company Act By
The Class And Derivatively On Behalf Of The Lord Abbett Funds

62.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and cvery allegation contained above as if

fully sct forth herein.
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63. This Count is brought pursuant 1o Section 48(a) of the Investment Company Act
against the Partner Defendants as control persons of Lord Abbett who caused Lord Abbett to
commniit the violations of the Tnvestment Company Act alleged herein. It is appropriate to treat
these defendants as a group for pleading purposes and to presume that the misconduct
complained of herein constitutes the collective actions of the Partner Defendants.

64.  The Partner Defendants are liable under Section 34(b) ol the Investment
Company Act to the Class and under 36(b) of the Investment Company Act lo the Lord Abbctt
Funds, as set forth herein.

65. Each of the Parlner Defendants was a “control person”™ of Lord Abbett and causcd
the violations complained of herein. By virtue of their positions of operational control and/or
authority over Lord Abbeltl, the Partncr Dcfendants, directly and indirectly, had the power and
authority, and exercised the same, to canse Lord Abbett to engage in the wrongful conduct
complained of herein.

66.  Pursuant to Section 48(a) of the Investment Company Act, by reason of the
foregoing, the Pariner Defcndants are liable to Plaintiff to the same extent as is Lord Abbett for
their primary violations of Sections 34(b) and 36(b) of the Investment Company Act.

67. By virtue of the forcgoing, Plaintiff and other Class members are entitled to
damages against the Partner Delendants.

COUNT 1V
Against Lord Abbett Under Section 215 Of The

Investment Advisers Act For Violations Of Section 206 Of The Investment
Advisers Act Derivatively On Behalf Of The Lord Abbett Funds

68.  PlaintifT repeats and rcalleges each and every allegation contained above as if

fully set forth herein.
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69.  This Count is based upon Scetion 215 of the Investment Advisers Act, 15 U.S.C.
§80b-15.

70.  Lord Abbetl served as “investment adviser” to the Lord Abbett Funds and other
members of the Class pursuant to the Tnvestment Advisers Act.

71.  As a fiduciary pursuant to the Investment Advisers Act, Lord Abbetl was required
to serve the Lord Abbett Funds in a manner in accordance with the federal fiduciary standards set
forth in Section 206 of the Investment Advisers Act, 15 U.S.C. §80b-6, governing the conduct of
investment advisers.

72.  During the Class Period, Lord Abbett breached its fiduciary duties 1o the Lord
Abbell Funds by cngaging in a deceptive contrivance, scheme, practice and course ol conduct
pursuani Lo which it knowingly and/or recklessly engaged in acts, transactions, practices and
courses of busincss which operated as a fraud upon the Lord Abbett Funds. As detailed above,
Lord Abbett skimmed money from the Lord Abbett Funds by charging and collecting fees from
the Lord Abbett Funds in violation of the Investment Company Act and the Investment Advisers
Act. The purposc and effect of said scheme, practicc and course of conduct was to cnrich Lord
Abbett and the other defendants, at the expensc of the Lord Abbett Funds. Lord Abbett breached
its fiduciary duties owed to the Lord Abbetl Funds by engaging in the aforesaid transactions,
practices and courses of busincss knowingly or recklessly so as to constitute a deceil and fraud
upon the Lord Abbeit Funds.

73, Lord Abbett is lHable as a direct participant in the wrongs complained of herein.
Lord Abbett, because ol its position of authority and control over the Lord Abbett Funds was
able to and did conirol the fees charged to and collected from the Lord Abbett Funds and

otherwise control the operations of the Lord Abbett Funds.

24




Case 2:04-cv-00559-WJUM-RJH  Document 1 Filed 02/09/2004 Page 27 of 3401

74.  Lord Abbett had a duty to (1) disserminate accurate and truthful information with
respect to the Lord Abbett Funds; and (2) truthfully and uniformly act in accordance with ils
staled policies and fiduciary responsibilities to the Tord Abbett Funds. Lord Abbett participated
in the wrongdoing complaincd of herein in order to prevent the Lord Abbctt Funds from
knowing of Lord Abbell’s breaches of fiduciary duties including: (1) the charging of the Lord
Abbctt Funds and Lord Abbetl Funds investors improper Rule 12b-1 marketing lees; (2) making
improper undisclosed payments of Soft Dollars; (3) making unauthorized use of “dirccted
brokerage” as a marketing tool; and (4) charging the Lord Abbett 'unds for excessive and
improper commission payments to brokers.

75. As aresult of Lord Abbett’s multiple breaches of its fiduciary duties owed to the
Lord Abbett Funds, the Lord Abbett Funds were damaged.

76. The Lord Abbett Funds are cntitled to rescind their investment advisory contracts

with Lord Abbetl and recover all fees paid in cormection with their enrollment pursuant to such

agreements.
COUNT V
Breach Of Fiduciary Duty Against
Lord Abbett On Behalf Of The Class
77.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges each of the preceding allegations as though fully set

forth herein.

78.  As adviser to the Lord Abbett Funds, Lord Abbett was a fiduciary to the Plaintiff
and other members of the Class and was required 1o act with the highest obligations of good
faith, loyalty, fair dealing, due care and candor.

79,  As sct forth above, T.ord Abbett breached its fiduciary duties to Plaintiff and the

Class.
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80.  Plaintiff and the Class have been specially injured as a direct, proximate and
foreseeable result of such breach on the part of Lord Abbett and have suffered substantial
damages.

81.  Because Lord Abbett acted with reckless and willful disregard for the rights of
Plaintiff and other members of the Class, Lord Abbett is liable for punitive damages in an
amount 1o be determined by the jury.

COUNT VI

Breach Of Fiduciary Duty Against The Director
Defendants On Behalf Of The Class

82.  Plainliff repeats and realleges each of the preceding allegations as though fully sct
forth herein.

83,  As Lord Abbett Funds directors, the Director Defendants had a fiduciary duty to
the Lord Abbett Funds and Lord Abbett Funds investors to supervisc and monitor Lord Abbett.

84.  The Director Defendants breached their fiduciary duties by reason of the acts
alleged herein, including their knowing or reckless failure to prevent Lord Abbelt from (1)
charging the T.ord Abbett Funds and Lord Abbeti Funds investors improper Rule 12b-1
marketing fees; (2) making improper undisclosed payments of Soft Dollars; (3) making
unauthorized use of “directed brokcrage” as a marketing tool; and (4} charging the Lord Abbett
Funds for cxcessive and improper commission payments to brokers.

85.  Plaintiff and the Class have been specially injured as a direct, proximate and
foresecable result of such breach on the part of Lord Abbett and have suffcred substantial

damages.
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86.  Because Lord Abbctt acted with reckless and willful disregard for the rights of
Plaintiff and other members of the class, Lord Abbett is liable for pumitive damages in an amount
to be determined by the jury.

COUNT VII

Aiding And Abetting A Breach Of Fiduciary Duty Against
Lord Abbett On Behalf Of The Class

87.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges each of the preceding allegations as though fully sct
forth herein.

§8. At all relevant times, the broker dealers that sold Tord Abbett Funds had fiduciary
duties of loyalty to their clients, including PlaintifT and other members of the Class.

89.  Lord Abbett knew or should have known that the broker dealers had these
fiduciary dutics.

90. By accepting improper Rule 12b-1 fees, Soft Dollars and excessive commissions
in exchange for aggressively pushing Lord Abbett Funds, and by failing to disclose the receipt of
such fees, the brokerages breached their fiduciary duties to Plaintifl and the other members of the
Class.

9].  Lord Abbett possessed actual or constructive knowledge that the brokerages were
breaching their fiduciary duties, but nonetheless perpetrated the fraudulent scheme alleged
herein.

92, Lord Abbett’s actions, as described in this complaint, were a substantial factor in
causing the losses suflered by Plaintiff and the other members of the Class. By participating in

the brokerages’ breaches of iduciary duties, Lord Abbetl 1s liable thercfor.
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93, As a direct, proximate and foreseeable resull of Lord Abbett’s knowing
parlicipation in the brokerages’ breaches of fiduciary duties, Plaintiff and the Class have suffered
damages.

94.  Because Lord Abbetl acted with reckless and willful disregard for the rights of
Plaintiff and other members of the Class, Lord Abbett is liable for punitive damages in an
amount to be determined by the jury.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief and judgment, as follows:

A, Determining that thig action is a proper class action and certifying Plaintiff
as the Class representative and Plaintiff’s counsel as Class counsgel under Rule 23 of the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure;

B. Awarding compensatory damages in favor of Plaintiff and the other Class
members against all defendants, jointly and scverally, for all damages sustained as a result of
defendants” wrongdoing, in an amouni 1o be proven at trial, including interest thereon,

C. Awarding punitive damages in favor of Plaintiff and the other Class
members against all defendants, jointly and scverally, for all damages sustained as a result of
defendants’ wrongdoing, in an amount to be proven at trial, including inlerest thercon,

D. Awarding the Lord Abbett Funds rescission ol their contracts with Lord
Abbett, including recovery of all fecs which would otherwise apply, and recovery of all fecs paid
to Lord Abbett;

E. Ordering an accounting of all Lord Abbett Fund-relaled fees,
commissions, and Soft Dollar payments,

F. Ordering restitution ol all unlawfully or discriminatorily obtamed [ees and

charges;
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G. Awarding such other and further relief as this Court may deem just and
proper, including any extraordinary equitable and/or injunctive relief as permitted by law or
equity to attach, impound or otherwise restrict the defendants’ assets to assurc that Plaintiff and
the Class have an cffective remedy,

H. Awarding Plaintiff and the Class their reasonable costs and expenses
incurred in this action, including counscl fees and expert fees; and

I. Such other and further relief as the Court may decm just and proper.

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury.

Dated: Fcbruary 9, 2004

'Patrick L. Rocco (PR8621) /—\

Jennifer Sullivan (JS6957)

163 Madison Avenue, P.O. Box 1277
Morristown, New Jersey (7962-1277
(973) 775-8997

MILBERG WEISS BERSHAD
HYNES & LERACHLLP

Steven G. Schulman

Janine L. Pollack

Peter E. Seidman

Kim E. Levy

One Pennsylvania Plaza

New York, New York 10119-0165

(212) 594-5300
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LAW OFFICES OF CHARLES I. PIVEN, P.A.
Charles J. Piven

Marshall N, Perking

The World Trade Center — Baltimorc

Suite 2525

401 Bast Prail Street

Baltimore, Maryland 21202

(410) 332-0030

Counsel for Plaintiff and the Class
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EXHIBIT A
THE LORD ABBETT FUNDS

Lord Abbettl Affiliated Fund

Lord Abbett All Value Fund

[.ord Abbctt Alpha Series Fund

Lord Abbett America's Valug Fund

Lord Abbett Balanced Series Fund

Lord Abbett Developing Growth Fund

Lord Abbett Global Equity Fund

Lord Abbett Growth Opportunities Fund
Lord Abbeti Tnternational Core Equity Fund
Lord Abbett International Opportunities Fund
Lord Abbett Large-Cap Growth Fund

Lord Abbett Large-Cap Research Fund
Lord Abbett Large-Cap Value Fund

Lord Abbett Mid-Cap Value Fund

Lord Abbett Small-Cap Blend Fund

Lord Abbett Small-Cap Value Fund

Lord Abbett Bond-Debenture Fund

Lord Abbett California Fund

Lord Abbett Connecticut Fund

Lord Abbett Convertible Fund

Lord Abbett Core Fixed Tncome Fund

Lord Abbett Florida ['und

Lord Abbeit Georgia Fund

Lord Abbett Global Income Fund

Lord Abbett Hawaii Fund

Lord Abbett High Yicld Fund

Lord Abbett [nsured Intermediate Fund
Lord Abbett Limited Duration USG & GSE Fund
TLord Abbett Michigan Fund

Lord Abbett Minnesota Fund

Lord Abbett Missoun Fund

T.ord Abbett National Tax-Free Fund

Lord Abbctt New Jersey Fund

Lord Abbett New York Fund

Lord Abbett Pennsylvania Fund

Lord Abbett Texas Fund

Lord Abbett Total Return Fund

Lord Abbett USG & GSE Fund

Lord Abbett USG & GSE Moncy Market Fund
Lord Abbett Washington Fund

Page 33 of ;%‘D




Case 2:04-cv-00559-WJM-RJH  Document 1  Filed 02/09/2004

EXHIBIT B

LORD ABBETT CLOSED FUNDS THAT
CHARGE RULE 12b-1 MARKETING FEES

Lord Abbett Developing Growth Fund Class A
Lord Abbett Developing Growth Fund Class B
Lord Abbett Developing Growth Fund Class C
Lord Abbett Developing Growth Fund Class P
Lord Abbett Small Cap Value Fund Class A
Lord Abbett Small Cap Value Fund Class B
Lord Abbett Small Cap Value Fund Class C
Lord Abbett Small Cap Value Fund Class P
Lord Abbett Mid Cap Value Fund Class A
Lord Abbett Mid Cap Valuc Fund Class B
Lord Abbett Mid Cap Value Fund Class C
Lord Abbett Mid Cap Value Fund Class P
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